
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Patrick Adams 03450 450 500 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Friday 18 March 2011 
 
To: Chairman – Councillor James Hockney 
 Vice-Chairman – Councillor Bridget Smith 
 Members of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee – Councillors Richard Barrett, 

Jose Hales, Roger Hall, Tumi Hawkins, Liz Heazell, Mark Hersom, 
Peter Johnson, Mike Mason, Tony Orgee, Ben Shelton and Bunty Waters 

Quorum: 7 
 

 
There is a pre-meeting session at 10:00am in the Recreation Room on the Ground Floor 

for members of the Committee only, to plan their lines of enquiry. 
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend the next meeting of SCRUTINY AND OVERVIEW COMMITTEE, which 
will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, FIRST FLOOR on MONDAY, 28 MARCH 2011 at 
10.30 a.m. 
 
Members are respectfully reminded that when substituting on committees, subcommittees, and 
outside or joint bodies, Democratic Services must be advised of the substitution in advance of 
the meeting.  It is not possible to accept a substitute once the meeting has started.  Council 
Standing Order 4.3 refers. 
 
Yours faithfully 
JEAN HUNTER 
Chief Executive 
 

The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the 
community, access to its agendas and minutes.  We try to take all 
circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, 

please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. 
 
 

AGENDA 
PAGES 

 PROCEDURAL ITEMS   
 
1. Apologies    
 To receive apologies for absence from committee members.   
   
2. Declarations of Interest    
 Please note that the Constitution requires that when considering any 

decision in respect of which a member of the Committee is subject to a 
party whip, the member must declare the existence of the whip. Under 
the Code of Conduct, any Councillor who has a personal or prejudicial 

 

 South Cambridgeshire Hall 
Cambourne Business Park 
Cambourne 
Cambridge 
CB23 6EA 
t: 03450 450 500 
f: 01954 713149 
dx: DX 729500 Cambridge 15 
minicom: 01480 376743 
www.scambs.gov.uk 



interest should declare this at the meeting. 
   
3. Public Questions    
 
4. Call in: Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan 3 (Key)  1 - 26 
 
5. To Note the Dates of Future Meetings    
 2011: 28 April at 7pm. 

 
The meeting dates for 2011/12 will be: 
2011: 30 June at 7pm, 6 September at 7pm, 3 November at 2pm, 15 
December at 2pm. 
2012: 6 February 2pm, 29 March 2pm and 3 May 7pm. 

 

   
 Exclusion of Press and Public 
 The law allows Councils to consider a limited range of issues in private session without 
members of the Press and public being present.  Typically, such issues relate to 
personal details, financial and business affairs, legal privilege and so on.  In every 
case, the public interest in excluding the Press and Public from the meeting room must 
outweigh the public interest in having the information disclosed to them.  The following 
statement will be proposed, seconded and voted upon.   
 
"I propose that the Press and public be excluded from the meeting during the 
consideration of the following item number(s) ….. in accordance with Section 100(A) 
(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that, if present, there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph(s) ….. of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act.” 
 
If exempt (confidential) information has been provided as part of the agenda, the Press 
and public will not be able to view it.  There will be an explanation on the website 
however as to why the information is exempt.   
   

 
OUR VISION 

• We will make South Cambridgeshire a safe and healthy place where residents are 
proud to live and where there will be opportunities for employment, enterprise and 
world-leading innovation. 

• We will be a listening Council, providing a voice for rural life and first-class services 
accessible to all. 

 
OUR VALUES 

We will demonstrate our corporate values in all our actions. These are: 
• Trust 
• Mutual respect 
• A commitment to improving services 
• Customer service 
   
 
  



 GUIDANCE NOTES FOR VISITORS TO SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE HALL 
 While the District Council endeavours to ensure that visitors come to no harm when visiting South 
Cambridgeshire Hall, those visitors also have a responsibility to make sure that they do not risk their own 
or others’ safety. 
 
Security 
Members of the public attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices must report to 
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badges issued.  Before leaving the building, such 
visitors must sign out and return their Visitor badges to Reception. 
 
Emergency and Evacuation 
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound.  Evacuate the building using the nearest escape 
route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this would be via the staircase just outside 
the door.  Go to the assembly point at the far side of the staff car park. 
• Do not use the lifts to exit the building.  If you are unable to negotiate stairs by yourself, the 

emergency staircase landings are provided with fire refuge areas, which afford protection for a 
minimum of 1.5 hours.  Press the alarm button and wait for assistance from the Council fire 
wardens or the fire brigade. 

• Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the fire brigade confirms that it is safe to 
do so. 

 
First Aid 
If someone feels unwell or needs first aid, please alert a member of staff. 
 
Access for People with Disabilities 
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to its agendas and 
minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us 
know, and we will do what we can to help you.  All meeting rooms are accessible to wheelchair users.  
There are disabled toilet facilities on each floor of the building.  Infra-red hearing assistance systems are 
available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you must sit in sight of the infra-red 
transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position.  If 
your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’ position facility then earphones are also available and can be used 
independently. You can obtain both neck loops and earphones from Reception. 
 
Toilets 
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. 
 
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency.  Until such time as the Council’s Constitution is 
updated to allow public recording of business, the Council and all its committees, sub-committees or any 
other sub-group of the Council or the Executive will have the ability to formally suspend Standing Order 
21.4 (prohibition of recording of business) for the duration of that meeting to enable the recording of 
business, including any audio / visual or photographic recording in any format or use of social media to 
bring Council issues to a wider audience.  To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, all 
attendees and visitors are asked to make sure that their phones and other mobile devices are set on silent 
/ vibrate mode during meetings. 
 
Banners, Placards and similar items 
No member of the public shall be allowed to bring into or display at any Council meeting any banner, 
placard, poster or other similar item. The Chairman may require any such item to be removed. 
 
Disturbance by Public 
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings, the Chairman will warn the person concerned.  If they 
continue to interrupt, the Chairman will order their removal from the meeting room.  If there is a general 
disturbance in any part of the meeting room open to the public, the Chairman may call for that part to be 
cleared. 
 
Smoking 
Since 1 July 2008, the Council has operated a new Smoke Free Policy. Visitors are not allowed to smoke 
at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or other grounds forming part of those offices. 
 
Food and Drink 
Vending machines and a water dispenser are available on the ground floor near the lifts at the front of the 
building.  Visitors are not allowed to bring food or drink into the meeting room. 
 
   



This page is left blank intentionally.



SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Scrutiny and Overview Committee 28 March 2011 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director – Corporate Services / Senior Democratic 

Services Officer 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Nick Wright – Planning Portfolio Holder 

 
 

CALL IN OF PLANNING PORTFOLIO HOLDER’S DECISION TO ENDORSE THE 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 3 

 
Purpose 

 
1. To advise Members of the procedure to hear the call-in of the decision taken by the 

Planning Portfolio Holder on 8 March 2011 to support the Cambridgeshire Local 
Transport Plan 3 and to endorse the District Statement within the Plan. 
 

2. The matter under scrutiny was a key decision because:  
• it is likely to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working 

in an area of the District comprising two or more wards (affecting all wards). 
• it raises new issues of policy, or is made in the course of developing proposals to 

amend the policy framework, or is a decision taken under powers delegated by 
the Council to amend an aspect of the policy framework. 

and it was first published in the December 2010 Forward Plan. 
 
Options 

 
3. Realistically the Committee has two options, which are listed in paragraph 12.9 of the 

Constitution and are: 
(A) refer the decision back to the Portfolio Holder for re-consideration, setting out 

in writing the nature of its concerns.  If referred back, the executive decision 
taker shall then re-consider within five working days, amending the decision or 
not, before adopting a final decision.  If the decision had been made before 
call-in, it may be implemented immediately;  

(B) not refer the matter back, in which case the decision may be implemented 
immediately following the Scrutiny and Overview Committee meeting. 

 
4. The County Council will be discussing the Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan on 

29 March and so this authority needs to take a decision on 28 March in order to 
ensure that its views are taken into account. This means that the option of referring 
the matter to Council is not realistic. It also means that if the decision is referred back 
to the Portfolio Holder, he will have to take a decision following the Scrutiny and 
Overview Committee in order to meet the deadline. 

 
Background 

 
5. The report which went to the Planning Portfolio Holder on 8 March 2011 is at 

Appendix A. The text of the decision is at Appendix B.  
 
6. This decision was called-in by the Chairman of the Scrutiny and Overview 

Committee, Councillor James Hockney, on the grounds that the decision was not 
made in accordance with the following three principles (which are listed amongst the 
six principles for decision making listed under Article 13 of the Constitution): 

 
(b)  due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;  

Agenda Item 4Page 1



(d)  presumption in favour of openness, helpfulness and consistency; and 
(f)  consideration of available options and giving reasons for decisions. 

7. Please note that Councillors Mason, Riley, Bear, de Lacey and Stonham also 
supported the call-in of this decision. 
 
Implications 

 
8.  Financial No direct financial implications for the Council 

Legal None 
Staffing Within existing staff resources 
Risk Management The lower level of funding present challenges to the deliver of 

the strategies and programmes. 
Equal and diversity The County Council have done an Equality Impact Assessment, 

which showed that the Plan has a neutral and/or positive impact 
on Equal Opportunities. 

Climate Change The Plan is important for the delivery of sustainable transport, 
with resultant climate change benefits. 

 
Consultations (copied from paragraphs 24 and 25 of the original report) 

 
9. Cambridgeshire County Council undertook stakeholder and public consultation in 

Spring 2010 prior to the preparation of the Strategy document. The Strategy has also 
been developed in partnership with the District Councils. 

 
10. Internal officer consultation has been undertaken on the draft Strategy and in the 

preparation of the District Statement.  An early draft of LTP3 and District Statement 
has also been shared with the New Communities and Planning Portfolio Holders and 
the Member Champion for Children and Young People. 
 
Conclusions / Summary 

 
11. The Committee needs to agree to option A or B as detailed in paragraph 3 above. If 

the Committee refers the decision back to Planning Portfolio Holder then it might wish 
to make an alternative recommendation. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report: The Council’s Constitution 

 
Contact Officer:  Patrick Adams – Senior Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone: (01954) 713408 
 
Portfolio Holder:  Cllr Nick Wright – Planning Portfolio Holder 
 

Page 2



Appendix A 

SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

  
REPORT TO: Planning Portfolio Holder 8 March 2011 
AUTHOR/S: Executive Director (Operational Services) / Corporate Manager (Planning 

and New Communities)  
 

 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 3 

 
Purpose 

 
1. The purpose of the report is to endorse the approach being taken by the County 

Council in its review of the Local Transport Plan (LTP) and to approve the District 
Council’s statement for inclusion within LTP3. 
 

2. This is a key decision because:  
• it is likely to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or 

working in an area of the District comprising two or more wards (affecting all 
wards). 

• it raises new issues of policy, or is made in the course of developing 
proposals to amend the policy framework, or is a decision taken under powers 
delegated by the Council to amend an aspect of the policy framework. 

and it was first published in the December 2010 Forward Plan. 
 
Recommendations 
 

3. The Portfolio Holder is recommended: 
 

(a) To support the emerging Local Transport Plan 3. 
(b) To endorse the District Statement for inclusion within LTP3 (attached at 

Appendix 3). 
 

Executive Summary 
 
4. The County Council is required by the Transport Act 2000 and the Local Transport 

Act 2008 to produce a third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) for the period from April 
2011.  LTP3 attempts to find a balance between realism over the funding position, the 
need to have a vision for the future and the need for strategies and programmes 
against which developer funding can be negotiated and bids for funding from sources 
can be made.  The support of the District Council is crucial in bidding for and 
achieving adequate funding for transport infrastructure investment.  The District 
Statement, which will be included within LTP3, outlines the Council’s support for the 
LTP and key issues and priorities for the Council. 
 
Background 

 
5. The County Council is required by the Transport Act 2000 and the Local Transport 

Act 2008 to produce a third Local Transport Plan (LTP3) for the period from April 
2011.  The coalition government has confirmed their continued commitment to the 
role of LTPs as a key tool in delivering transport investment and services at the local 
level.   

 

Page 3



Appendix A 

6. The LTP3 guidance allows more flexibility to develop plans that focus on local 
circumstance.  Unlike previous LTP, there will no longer be national review of plan 
quality and content, and the requirement to review and replace plans in a five year 
cycle has been replaced by a requirement to keep the plan current.  LTP3 seeks to 
take advantage of this flexibility and local focus in a number of ways, including: 

 
• Separating the Strategy and the Implementation Plan into separate documents. 
• Having a longer timeframe for the Strategy, initially from 2011 - 2026. 
• Having a shorter term detailed Implementation Plan which will be reviewed 

annually and look 2-3 years ahead. 
• Taking a modular approach to LTP3, with the intent that individual sections will be 

updated in timescales that fit with other local plans, policies and processes. 
7. The Draft LTP3 Policies and Strategy document and Implementation Plan can be 

viewed on the County Council’s website at: 
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/transport/strategies/local/  
 
Local Transport White Paper 
 

8. In January 2011 the Government published its Local Transport White Paper: Creating 
Growth, Cutting Carbon - Making Sustainable Transport Happen, together with 
guidance on bidding for Local Sustainable Transport Funding.  LTP3 is consistent 
with the White Paper, focussing on delivering economic growth whilst being greener, 
safer and improving quality of life in local communities.  This means focussing on 
implementing packages of local solutions enabling people to make sustainable 
transport choices. 
 
Funding 

 
9. There are very challenging times ahead in terms of financial restraint.  Funding from 

Government for transport is allocated to local transport authorities from five sources.  
These are:  

 
• Integrated Transport Block. 
• Maintenance Block.  
• Major Schemes Pot.  
• Sustainable Transport Fund. A new funding pot that has been established by 

Government with a total of £560 million capital and revenue funding available 
across England in the four years from 2011/12.  

• Regional Growth Fund. Another new funding pot that has been established by 
Government with a total of £1.4 billion capital and revenue funding is available 
across England in the three years from 2011/12.  

10. The capital grants from Government for Integrated Transport (used primarily for 
relatively small scale physical improvements to local transport networks) and 
Maintenance (major maintenance works to the transport network, including major 
resurfacing, maintenance or replacement of bridges, tunnels and other highway 

Page 4



Appendix A 

structures) for 2011/12 and 2012/13 and indicative funding for 2013/14 and 2014/15 
were published on 13 December, as detailed in Figures 1 and 2. 

 
Figure 1 Capital grants for LTP3 
 
Programme 
Area 

Av. LTP2 
funding 

2006/07 – 10/11 
LTP3 funding  Indicative funding  Av. cut 

from 
LTP2 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Integrated 
Transport £8.431M £3.805M £4.059M £4.059M £5.707M -48% 
Maintenance £11.658M £10.712M £10.695M £10.801M £10.104M -9% 
Total £20.089M £14.517M £14.754M £14.860M £15.811M -25% 

 
Figure 2 Capital funding from Government for LTP1, LTP2 and LTP3 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Fu
nd

ing
 (£

00
0s

)

Integrated Transport Maintenance

LTP1 LTP2 LTP3

 11. In October 2010, the Government announced the Major Schemes (local schemes of 
total cost greater than £5 million) it will support or consider for funding in the next four 
years.  In Cambridgeshire, there were no schemes on these lists.  There is therefore 
no scope to fund priority projects such as Chesterton Interchange or the Ely Southern 
Link Road from this source prior to 2015/16.   

 
12. Although the County Council and its partners are likely to bid for funding from The 

Regional Growth Fund and Local Sustainable Transport Fund, they cannot be relied 
upon to supplement the reduced core budgets.   

 
13. There are a number of further sources of funding raised locally that are used to 

undertake maintenance or improvement of the transport network, including:  
 

•  County Council revenue funding. Used for management and maintenance of 
the local transport network; including pothole filling, winter maintenance, road 
safety education and maintenance of traffic signals and street lighting.  

 
•  County Council capital funding. Used to supplement government funding in the 

Integrated Transport and Maintenance Block programmes.  
 

Page 5



Appendix A 

•  District Council and Parish Council funding / contributions towards 
schemes. Contributions towards the delivery of transport infrastructure and 
services that help deliver local priorities in their areas.  

 
•  Developer funding. Funding negotiated from developers towards schemes to 

militate against the impact of development proposals on the transport network.  
 
•  Grant funding from other sources.  Possible sources include European 

funding, funding from government departments other than the Department for 
Transport, and funding from local stakeholders.  

 
14. The LTP3 Policies and Strategy document therefore attempts to find a balance 

between realism over the funding position, the need to have a vision for the future 
and the need for strategies and programmes against which developer funding can be 
negotiated and bids for funding from sources such as the Local Sustainable Transport 
Fund and the Regional Growth Fund can be made. 
 
Process to develop the draft strategy 

 
15. The Strategy to 2026 has been developed following public and stakeholder 

consultation which took place from January to July 2010.  Strong partnership working 
has been integral to the formulation of the consultation materials and development of 
the draft Strategy.  The Cambridgeshire district councils have contributed to the 
production of the strategy by means of a joint officer steering group.   
 
LTP3 Objectives 

 
16. The objectives of the LTP are the County Council’s five strategic objectives and 

reflect the national policy position by placing a focus on tackling carbon emissions 
and growing the economy.  They are also broadly similar to the Council’s own aims 
and objectives and are listed below: 
 
1. Enabling people to thrive, achieve their potential & improve their quality of life. 
2. Supporting & protecting vulnerable people. 
3. Managing & delivering the growth & development of Cambridgeshire’s 

communities. 
4. Promoting improved skills levels and economic prosperity across the county, 

helping people into jobs and encouraging enterprise. 
5. Tackling climate change. 

 
LTP3 Challenges 

 
17. The Strategy is based on the need to address eight key transport challenges.  These 

challenges, set out below, have been identified through public and stakeholder 
consultation, local and national research, including drawing on census data, transport 
modelling data and environmental data.  They are: 

 
• Reducing the length of the commute and the need to travel by private car. 
• Influencing national and local decisions on land-use and transport planning that 

impact on routes through Cambridgeshire. 
• Improving the reliability of journey times by managing demand for road space and 

maximising the capacity and efficiency of the existing network. 

Page 6



Appendix A 

• Making sustainable modes of transport a viable and attractive alternative to the 
private car. 

• Future-proofing our maintenance strategy and new transport infrastructure to 
cope with the effects of climate change. 

• Ensuring people – especially those at particular risk of social exclusion – can 
access the services they need within reasonable time, cost and effort wherever 
they live in the county. 

• Addressing the main causes of road accidents in Cambridgeshire. 
• Protecting and enhancing the natural environment by minimising the 

environmental impact of transport. 
18. Although LTP3 sets out measures for addressing the above challenges on a 

countywide basis, as a modular plan it will comprise a suite of documents and in due 
course will also include: 

 
• Cambridge Area Transport Strategy (CATS) will set out how additional growth 

planned for the city and surrounding area will be accommodated and the 
transport improvements needed.  It will also be an important mechanism for 
securing funding towards transport improvements (and will replace the current 
Cambridge Corridor Area Transport Plans).   

 
• Market Town Transport Strategies (MTTS) consider in detail the transport 

needs of each particular town and set out a programme of measures to 
encourage use of more environmentally sustainable transport and improve safety 
over the longer term.  Like CATS, they will also be used to help secure funding.   

 
• Rural Transport Strategy (RTS) a strategy for the rural areas of the county. 

 
19. The development of CATS (currently underway) and the RTS will be of particular 

interest to South Cambs, and Members and officers will be closely involved in their 
development.  It will be important to ensure packages of measures that will, in 
combination, meet the plan objectives and have the best chance of meeting the 
bidding criteria for Government funding.   

 
20. The Cambridgeshire Councils are currently working together to draw up a proposal to 

bid for Local Sustainable Transport Fund monies, which is likely to include a proposal 
to expand and co-ordinate community transport services across the county in the 
wake of the proposed withdrawal of bus service subsidies. 

 
District Statement 

 
21. The District Council needs to submit a short statement to be incorporated into the 

LTP which sets out the Council’s transport priorities and key issues for South 
Cambridgeshire.  Support of the District Councils as major partners in the LTP 
process has been a major factor in securing improved funding for transport 
infrastructure for the area in recent years.  One of the bidding criteria for future 
funding is local support and partnership working.  A draft Statement for South 
Cambridgeshire is attached at Appendix 2 for endorsement. 

 
Next Steps 

 

Page 7



Appendix A 

22. The final LTP3 will be submitted to Government by the end of March 2011.  Although 
the Government is stepping back from monitoring, national guidance makes it clear 
that local authorities should continually look to improve their own performance.  
Authorities are accountable to their communities rather than to the DfT for both the 
quality of the transport strategies prepared and for ensuring effective delivery.  
Performance monitoring should be an integral part of managing the LTP programme 
therefore the Implementation Plan will be reviewed on an annual basis, although 
looking ahead 2-3 years. 
 
Implications 

 
23. Financial There are no direct financial implications for the Council.  

However, LTP3 sets out strategies and programmes against 
which developer funding can be negotiated and bids made for 
funding from other sources, therefore there is a need for the 
Council to work in partnership with the County Council to 
achieve positive outcomes as funding opportunities arise.  

Legal None.  
Staffing Within existing staff resources. 
Risk Management The lower level of funding present challenges to the delivery of 

the strategies and programmes.  
Equality and 
Diversity 

LTP3 has been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment.  
Equality Impact 
Assessment 
completed 

Yes http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/transport/strategies/local/ 
 
The EqIA has been shown to have a neutral and / or positive 
impact on Equal Opportunities. 

Climate Change LTP3 is important for the delivery of sustainable transport, with 
resultant climate change benefits. 

 
Consultations 

 
24. Cambridgeshire County Council undertook stakeholder and public consultation in 

Spring 2010 prior to the preparation of the Strategy document.  The Strategy has also 
been developed in partnership with the District Councils. 

 
25. Internal officer consultation has been undertaken on the draft Strategy and in the 

preparation of the District Statement.  An early draft of LTP3 and District Statement 
has also been shared with the New Communities and Planning Portfolio Holders and 
the Member Champion for Children and Young People.  

 
Effect on Strategic Aims 
 

26. We are committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services 
accessible to all: The stakeholder and public consultation in Spring 2010 has 
enabled the Councils to receive comments prior to the preparation of the strategy.  

 
27. We are committed to ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a 

safe and healthy place for you and your family: LTP3 sets out a broad range 
strategies and programmes for the delivery of sustainable transport accessible to all, 
and maintenance of the existing network.  

 
28. We are committed to making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents 

can feel proud to live: LTP3 sets out a broad range strategies and programmes for 

Page 8



Appendix A 

the delivery of sustainable transport accessible to all, and maintenance of the existing 
network.  

 
29. We are committed to assisting provision of local jobs for you and your family: 

LTP3 will ensure adequate infrastructure is in place to accommodate further 
development. 

 
30. We are committed to providing a voice for rural life: The stakeholder and public 

consultation in Spring 2010 has enabled the Councils to receive comments prior to 
the preparation of the strategy. 

 
Conclusions / Summary 

 
31. The LTP has been reviewed and will be submitted to Government at the end of 

March.  LTP3 attempts to find a balance between realism over the funding position, 
the need to have a vision for the future and the need for strategies and programmes 
against which developer funding can be negotiated and bids for funding from sources 
such as the Sustainable Transport Fund and Regional Growth Fund can be made.  
The support of the District Council is crucial in bidding for and achieving adequate 
funding for transport infrastructure investment.  The District Statement outlines the 
Council’s support for the LTP and key issues and priorities for the Council. 

 
 
Background Papers: the following background papers were used in the preparation of this 
report:  

Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026 Policies and Strategy 
Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan 2011-2026 Implementation Plan 
 

 
Contact Officer:  Claire Spencer – Senior Planning Policy Officer 

Telephone: (01954) 713418 
 
 
Appendices: 

1. Executive Summary for Local Transport Plan 3 (Policies and Strategy) 
2. Executive Summary for Local Transport Plan 3 (Implementation Plan) 
3. District Statement 

 

Page 9



Appendix A 

Appendix 1  
 

LTP3 Policies and Strategy Executive Summary 
 
This is Cambridgeshire’s Third Local Transport Plan (also referred to as this LTP, LTP3 and 
the Plan) and covers the period 2011-2026. 
 
The Plan is split in to two main parts; this first part is the Policies and Strategy, which sets 
out the Plan’s objectives, problems and challenges and the strategy to meet the challenges. 
 
The second part is the Implementation Plan, which is essentially a business plan detailing 
how we will deliver the LTP3 Strategy. It details our programmes for the delivery of transport 
improvements to the networks managed by the County Council, and also for the day-to-day 
management and maintenance of the network. It sets out the schemes and measures we 
expect to deliver in the first year of the Plan in detail, and sets out the processes by which 
future years’ programmes will be developed. It also details the indicators and targets we will 
use to monitor our performance. 
 
The LTP demonstrates how our policies and plans for transport will contribute towards the 
County Council’s vision – Creating communities where people want to live and work: now 
and in the future. While we must have a vision for the future, we must also be realistic and 
recognise that we do not have the resources to deliver all of the measures we would wish to 
over the lifetime of the Plan. Indeed, given the current economic climate, our ability to 
implement schemes in the short-term may be particularly limited, although we will try and be 
innovative in the way that we use funds that are available. In this respect, it is important that 
the LTP sets the policy framework that leaves us well prepared to take advantage of 
opportunities that may occur to bring in additional or alternative funding and resources. 
 
As a flexible and dynamic document, the LTP Policies and Strategy document will be 
updated to reflect changes in the wider local and national policy context, council priorities 
and local consultation as and when needed. The Implementation Plan will be updated on an 
annual basis. 
As with our previous Plans, this LTP3 has been produced in partnership with Cambridge City 
Council and the district councils of East Cambridgeshire, Fenland, Huntingdonshire and 
South Cambridgeshire. We have had a strong working relationship for many years and have 
been very successful in bringing together the planning and transport responsibilities of these 
authorities, to ensure an integrated approach to the challenges.  
 
LTP3 seeks to address existing transport challenges as well as setting out the policies and 
strategies to ensure that planned large-scale development can take place in the county in a 
sustainable way. In addition to working with Cambridge City and the District Councils, our 
Policies and Strategy and Implementation Plan documents have also been informed by 
public and stakeholder consultation, so that these documents reflect local people’s views and 
concerns.  
This LTP has been produced during a period of significant change, particularly in terms of the 
regional planning framework and tough financial climate. However, the County Council is 
committed to its overarching vision – Creating communities where people want to live and 
work: now and in the future. 
 
Funding 
 
In the short to medium term our ability to deliver transport improvements in Cambridgeshire 
will be limited compared to previous years. For Integrated Transport we have £3.805 million 
for 2011/12 compared to £8.4 million on average in the previous five years. For maintenance 
we £10.695 million compared to £11.658 million on average in the previous five years. This 

Page 10



Appendix A 

means that we will not be able to implement large-scale transport schemes such as new 
roads, public transport improvements or road safety initiatives. In addition, there will be less 
money for road maintenance.  
 
We will endeavour to secure additional funding through bidding opportunities such as the 
Regional Growth Fund and the Local Sustainable Transport Fund. Through the fund 
£560million will be available to the fund for the 4-year period to 2014-15 and will comprise 
both revenue and capital funding. The first round of bids must be submitted by 18th April 
2011, authorities can bid for up to £5 million. Bids for packages of measures up to £50 million 
will be short listed in July 2011. 
 
Objectives and challenges 
 
The County Council’s priorities are set out below. These reflect the most important things we 
will do as a Council. 
 

• Supporting and protecting people when they need it most 
• Helping people to live independent and healthy lives in their communities 
• Developing our local economy for the benefit of all 

The LTP will contribute towards the Council’s overall priorities, while also focusing on five 
LTP objectives set out below. 
 

1. Enabling people to thrive, achieve their potential and improve quality of life 
2. Supporting and protecting vulnerable people 
3. Managing and delivering the growth and development of sustainable communities 
4. Promoting improved skills levels and economic prosperity across the county, helping 

people into jobs and encouraging enterprise 
5. Meeting the challenges of climate change and enhancing the natural environment 

In response to Government’s priorities – the economy and climate change – and the views 
expressed locally in our public and stakeholder consultation, all these objectives are 
important and the strategy will enable economic growth and tackle climate change.  
 
Key among the issues affecting Cambridgeshire is the large-scale growth planned across the 
county, with the associated pressure on the transport network and the environment, and the 
risks of increased congestion and carbon dioxide emissions and worsening air quality. In 
parallel, many rural areas of the county continue to suffer from poor access to key services 
and leisure facilities and the risk of social exclusion. 
 
We have translated the issues and problems related to each of the objectives, into a set of 
eight challenges for transport, under which, we have set out our strategy for addressing 
them. The challenges and summarised strategies are:  
 
Challenge 1: Improving the reliability of journey times by managing demand for road 
space and maximising the capacity and efficiency of the existing network 
 
We will continue to investigate the potential to manage demand using the experience we 
have already gained within the county where this can help to improve conditions for 

Page 11



Appendix A 

sustainable modes of transport and maximising the capacity of the network. Furthermore, we 
will support measures which encourage the transfer of more freight onto rail and continue to 
work with freight operators to promote the use of the most appropriate routes for road freight, 
particularly where that is passing through the county. 
 
Challenge 2: Reducing the length of the commute and the need to travel by private car 
 
Our transport strategy supports the development strategy for Cambridgeshire by aiming to 
reduce the need to travel and by providing sustainable travel options for new developments. 
We will focus on securing school, workplace and residential travel plans and support and 
encourage employers to adopt smarter choices measures to help reduce the need to travel. 
We will also support and encourage journey planning tools to improve information available 
for journeys by sustainable modes. 
 
Challenge 3: Making sustainable modes of transport a viable and attractive alternative 
to the private car 
 
Countywide, we will continue to push forward in making sustainable modes of transport more 
attractive by continuing to develop sustainable networks for walking and cycling, making it 
easier for people to change between modes of transport and working with bus operators to 
provide high quality bus services. In addition, our aim is to improve the environment and 
safety for pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users, in accordance with our user 
hierarchy and focus on raising awareness of the transport choices available, including the 
health and environmental benefits of cycling and walking. This will include work with local 
planning authorities to ensure provision for sustainable modes that form an integral part of 
new developments. 
 
Challenge 4: Future-proofing our maintenance strategy and new transport 
infrastructure to cope with the effects of climate change 
 
To address these issues our strategy will use a risk management approach to help determine 
priority areas for adapting to climate change. We have developed an adaptation action plan 
to set out how we will meet our objectives. We will take account of the projected impacts of 
climate change at the scheme design stage, make use of emerging technologies as they 
become available and build new infrastructure to the latest standards for withstanding the 
impacts of climate change. 
 
Challenge 5: Ensuring people – especially those at risk of social exclusion – can 
access the services they need within reasonable time, cost and effort wherever they 
live in the county 
 
Our strategy focuses on access to key services for our communities to the nearest main 
service centre, e.g. large village or market town. We will consider the whole journey, 
including the interaction between different modes of transport and aiming to provide suitable 
transport provision for necessary journeys, whilst also recognising the importance of car 
borne access in many of our rural areas. We will continue to support the development and 
work of community transport schemes as well as investigating alternative forms of public 
transport where traditional bus services do not meet community needs. This will include work 
with service providers to be innovative in the way services are delivered locally recognising 
that it is not simply about providing a transport service but as much about where and how the 
service is provided based on need.  
 
Challenge 6: Addressing the main causes of road accidents in Cambridgeshire 
 

Page 12



Appendix A 

To continue to reduce casualties our strategy will focus on education, training and publicity to 
improve road user behaviour, particularly targeting young drivers and riders, users of rural 
roads and children. In addition, we will progress our programme of measures aimed at 
reducing casualties at accident cluster sites that will give the highest casualty reduction and 
work with the police and other agencies through the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Road 
Safety Partnership. 
 
Challenge 7: Protecting and enhancing the natural environment by minimising the 
environmental impact of transport 
 
Our strategy to protect and enhance the environment will focus on working with the district 
councils to reduce levels of air pollution in order to meet national objectives. This will be 
achieved through managing and reducing vehicle emissions and encouraging increased 
usage of sustainable modes of transport. Additional demand management measures will also 
be investigated where appropriate in order to manage car use and we will investigate the use 
of new technologies as they become available. Environmental issues such as protecting 
biodiversity and impacts on the landscape will be considered at the design stage of transport 
projects and we will support the provision of green infrastructure. Furthermore, we will reduce 
carbon dioxide emissions through a programme of smarter choices measures, improvements 
to sustainable travel options and the management of car use. 
 
Challenge 8: Influencing national and local decisions on land-use and transport 
planning that impact on routes through Cambridgeshire 
 
We will reflect national policies in our local plans, policies and strategies and continue to 
lobby for rail improvements as well as improvements to the trunk road network, including the 
A14. 
While aiming to address all the challenges we have identified, the main focus of our strategy 
will be on measures and initiatives that maintain and enhance the economy and also those 
that tackle climate change. This reflects both the outcomes from public and stakeholder 
consultation as well as the direction of national transport policy. The strategy recognises the 
tensions between enabling economic growth and tackling climate change, and will aim to 
balance the two objectives. 

 
Monitoring and performance 
 
Monitoring the effectiveness of our Policies and Strategy document and Implementation Plan 
is a key part of our LTP. We want to ensure that the delivery of our Plan is as effective as 
possible and is providing value for money, and therefore have a robust monitoring framework 
of indicators and targets to check our progress towards delivering our strategy and achieving 
our objectives. The indicators we have chosen reflect the issues which are most important to 
Cambridgeshire while at the same time enabling us to compare our progress against other 
local authorities in the country. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Our LTP3 Policies and Strategy document and Implementation Plan set out how we will help 
to address existing transport related problems and meet the transport needs of the large-
scale development planned for the county. It is important that our strategy provides the right 
balance between being aspirational, and outlining what we want to achieve against a 
backdrop, in the shorter term at least, of significantly less funding than during previous LTP 
periods whilst still being able to respond to the changing environment as and when needed.  
 
As such, our LTP3 is a flexible and dynamic suite of documents which will respond to the 
changing environment, as and when needed. This LTP aims to provide maximum value for 

Page 13



Appendix A 

money through close partnership working, by closely integrating our Policies and Strategy 
document and Implementation Plan and by monitoring our performance against indicators 
relevant to local communities. 

Page 14



Appendix A 

Appendix 2  
 

LTP3 Implementation Plan Executive Summary 
 
This Implementation Plan is the second of the two core documents in the suite of documents 
that make up the Third Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan (LTP3). It shows how the 
Implementation Plan fits in with and draws from the LTP Policies and Strategy, and from 
policy guidance, key objectives and more detailed local strategies.  
 
As the mechanism for managing our delivery of the whole LTP, the Implementation Plan is 
essentially a business plan detailing how we will deliver the LTP Policies and Strategy. It 
details our programmes for the delivery of transport improvements to the networks managed 
by the County Council, and also for the day-to-day management and maintenance of the 
network. It sets out the schemes and measures we expect to deliver over the first year of the 
plan in detail, and sets out the processes by which future years’ programmes will be 
developed. 
 
The Transport Capital Programme for 2011/12 focuses on the delivery of improvements to 
the transport network in Cambridgeshire, and the undertaking of major maintenance 
schemes. The types of measures that are funded from this programme include: 
 
• Traffic calming schemes 
• Pedestrian crossings 
• Major road maintenance and structural 

maintenance schemes 

• Cycleway schemes 
• Junction improvements 
• Major schemes (e.g. Guided Busway, 

Papworth Everard Bypass) 
 
The Transport Revenue Programme for 2011/12 focuses on the day-to-day management 
and maintenance of the local transport network in Cambridgeshire. The types of measures 
that are funded from this programme include: 
 
• Routine ongoing minor maintenance (e.g. 

pothole filling, gully emptying, grass 
cutting) 

• Road safety education 
• Winter maintenance 

• Travel planning with schools and 
businesses 

• Supported bus services / concessionary 
bus fares 

• School crossing patrols 
 
Funding levels for at least the first four years of this plan will be extremely challenging, with 
cuts to core funding of around 25% from levels seen over the period of the second 
Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan (LTP2). Revenue funding for transport will also reduce 
over the Plan period. There are new opportunities such as the Regional Growth Fund and 
the Sustainable Transport Fund, but these are bidding funds, and cannot be relied upon to 
supplement our reduced core budgets. 
 
The significant challenges that the current funding environment brings therefore requires the 
County Council and its partners to review not only the scope of the programmes that can be 
delivered, but also the organisational structures that deliver them. 
 
We have therefore set out the process which we will undertake through 2011 to develop the 
detailed programme for 2012/13 onwards. A detailed programme looking a year ahead will 
be maintained, along with a less detailed programme setting out the expected expenditure in 
programme areas of the following 3-4 years. Both will be updated on an annual basis, to 
ensure that the Implementation Plan remains aligned with our District Councils’ Local 

Page 15



Appendix A 

Development Frameworks (LDFs) and the needs of partner delivery agencies, local 
stakeholders and the public. 
 
The 2011/12 programme addresses the views of stakeholders and communities by reflecting 
their views on our LTP objectives and priority areas. For future years, work will be 
undertaken in 2011 to consider areas or programmes where decision making on priorities 
and schemes can be devolved to a more local level, but also to identify those areas where it 
will remain critical to maintain the strategic overview needed to ensure the safe and effective 
operation of the transport network. 

Page 16



Appendix A 

Figure 0.1 The Local Transport Plan suite of documents within local and national 
guidance 

  
Effective programme management and monitoring of performance is essential if the best 
possible outcomes are to be achieved from available resources, particularly in times when 
funding and resources are reducing. Cambridgeshire County Council seeks to ensure that 

LTP3 
Implementation 

Plan 

LTP3 
Policies and 

Strategy 

Planning 
Obligation / S106 

strategies 

Transport Asset 
Management Plan 

Cambridge Area 
Transport Strategy 

Market Town 
Transport 
Strategies 

Rural transport 
Strategy Air Quality Action 

Plans 

Environment 
Strategy Action 

Plan 

LTP Strategic 
Environmental 
Assessment 

Transport Act 2000 
/ Local Transport 

Act 2008 

Climate Change Act 
2008 

Local Transport 
Plan Guidance 

City and District, 
Councils 

Local 
Development 
Frameworks 

County Council 
Priorities and 
LTP Objectives 

Strategic Road and 
Rail Policies and 
Programmes 

Public and 
Stakeholder 
consultation 

Cambridgeshire 
Horizons 

Town and Parish 
Councils 

Emerging Local 
Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP) 

Regional Growth 
Fund (RGF) bids 

Local Sustainable 
Transport Fund 
(LTSF) bids 

Major Scheme 
funding bids 

Local Transport 
Plan Documents 

Government 
policy / guidance 

Local policy / 
guidance 

Local 
Development 
Frameworks 

LTP Habitat 
Regulation 
Assessment 

Integrated 
Transport 
Block 

Maintenance 
Block 

LSTF / RGF / 
Major scheme 

funding 

Developer 
funding 

County 
Council 
funding 

Other 
Council 
funding 

Government 
LTP funding 

Local LTP 
funding 

Page 17



Appendix A 

the management of its transport programmes is effective and appropriate, and is accountable 
to Members of the Council, the Council's partners and the wider community in 
Cambridgeshire. 

Page 18



Appendix A 

Appendix 3 
CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 

STATEMENT BY SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

This is the third Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan (LTP) produced as a result of the 
continuing partnership between the Cambridgeshire local authorities.   
 
The Council recognises that the scope of the new LTP is constrained by the reduced level of 
Government funding available, and it therefore cannot fully address all the transport 
measures that people desire and sometimes require in order to continue to enjoy a high 
quality of life, facilitate new development and sustain the local economy.   
 
As a result, the challenge for this LTP will be one of finding alternative sources of funding, 
including developer funding, and deliverable schemes which have an impact.  There is 
already an established culture of co-operation between the Councils in Cambridgeshire, 
particularly the three Councils in the Cambridge Area, on all transport modes.  The Coalition 
Government’s ‘Big Society’ agenda and Localism Bill present new opportunities through 
extended partnership working at the local level, which must be fully explored.  Local people 
will be able to become more actively involved in planning and delivering transport in their 
area. 
 
The LTP will help with the delivery of the Council’s vision describing our long-term 
aspirations for service delivery: 
 

To make South Cambridgeshire a safe and healthy place where residents are proud 
to live, and where there will be opportunities for employment, enterprise and world-
leading innovation.  We will be a listening Council, providing a voice for rural life and 
first-class services accessible to all. 

 
This will be achieved through the following five strategic aims: 
 

• Committed to being a listening Council, providing first class services accessible 
to all 
 

• Ensuring that South Cambridgeshire continues to be a safe and healthy place 
for you and your family 
 

• Making South Cambridgeshire a place in which residents can feel proud to live 
 

• Assisting provision of local jobs for you and your family 
 

• Providing a voice for rural life 
 
1. THE AREA 
 
1.1 South Cambridgeshire is a predominantly rural district entirely surrounding the City of 

Cambridge, with villages ranging in size from small hamlets to Sawston, which has 
around 8,000 people.  The district also includes parts of the urban fringe of 
Cambridge, notably to the north and at Cherry Hinton. Cambridge is the natural focus, 
although villages towards the periphery of the district look beyond its boundaries to 

Page 19



Appendix A 

the surrounding ring of market towns, such as Royston and Haverhill.  Nevertheless, 
Cambridge is the sub-regional centre, and access to it is of great importance. 

 
1.2 A number of strategic routes run through the district, both north / south and east / 

west, reflecting the strategic importance of Cambridge in the region.  These routes 
include the M11, A14 and A428 and the London / Ely / Kings Lynn railway. 

 
1.3 In many parts of the district public transport is good, especially along the main roads 

or ‘corridors’.  However, there are several villages where access to a bus or train 
service is poor or absent - only 6 villages are served by a railway station, for example.  
This, coupled with the rural nature of the district, means that many people feel 
isolated within and from their communities.  Accessing appropriate transport for 
essential and social journeys is challenging for many people, including the elderly and 
infirm, disabled, parents with young families and those who don’t drive, including 
children and young people.  The possible withdrawal of subsidies for marginal rural 
bus services could have a major impact on accessibility for smaller communities 
unless new services come forward to take their place.  The LTP Rural Transport 
Strategy will be crucial as a starting point for addressing the transport needs of these 
people in the rural area. 

 
2. POLICY BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The South Cambridgeshire Local Development Framework (LDF) contains a number of 

plans (www.scambs.gov.uk/ldf).  The Core Strategy Development Plan Document 
(DPD) was adopted in 2006 and sets out the strategy for the district for the period to 
2016 and beyond.  The Council has adopted two further DPDs and four Area Action 
Plans, the last of which was adopted in January 2010.  13 Supplementary Planning 
Documents provide further guidance on the implementation of these policies.   

 
2.2 In the past much of the housing development has been focused on the villages and 

towns beyond the city.  Whilst there has been employment growth elsewhere, 
Cambridge has remained the dominant centre of employment.  As demand has 
outstripped the supply of housing close to Cambridge, people have located further 
from Cambridge increasing commuter flows through the district.   

 
2.3 The LDF provides for most of the new development in the district to take place on the 

edge of Cambridge, including on the north western, eastern and southern fringes, and 
in a new town near to Longstanton and Oakington, known as Northstowe.  
Developments in these locations will maximise opportunities to reduce the need to 
travel, and provide modal choice by public transport, cycling and walking.   

 
2.4 The district has higher than county average levels of car ownership, particularly for the 

number of households with 2 or more cars, 41.2% compared to 33.8% countywide 
(2001 Census).  The district is also characterised by a high level of commuting and 
congestion on a number of strategic routes.  Although travel by non-car modes will be 
encouraged in the new development areas, the high level of development being 
planned will mean that traffic will continue to increase.   

 
2.5 The LDF plans for an almost 40% increase in housing development between 1999 and 

2016.  Whilst the recent economic downturn has resulted in a decline in house 

Page 20



Appendix A 

building, as the economy recovers housebuilding is expected to return to pre-
recession levels by 2014.  In addition, most of the major development sites, on the 
edge of Cambridge and at Northstowe, are reliant upon the A14 improvements to 
increase capacity of the road in order to accommodate the growth.  However, the 
Highways Agency’s proposed A14 Ellington to Fen Ditton Improvement Scheme, 
upgrading the road to three lanes, will not now happen as proposed and new 
measures to increase capacity are being explored by the Department for Transport.   

 
2.6 In the meantime the Council is working with the Councils in the Cambridge area and the 

Highways Agency to explore other ways of facilitating additional growth in advance of 
any A14 improvements.  The LTP Cambridge Area Transport Strategy will also have 
a crucial role to play in accommodating additional growth in a sustainable way without 
harm to the economy and environment. 

 
2.7 The Council is beginning a review of the Core Strategy and Development Control Policies 

DPDs in 2011 and may need to consider new housing allocations to make up for 
delays in housebuilding on sites affected by the delay in improving the A14.   

 
3. LAND-USE & TRANSPORT POLICIES 
 
3.1 The policy is to locate the majority of development in sustainable locations close to 

existing employment and services, or where there is an opportunity to improve local 
services.  This will minimise the need to travel and facilitate modal choice for new and 
existing residents through the provision of new infrastructure and public transport 
services. 

 
3.2 The Area Action Plans detail the transport objectives and policies applying to the major 

developments.  Cambridge East will be served by a rapid transit system, providing 
dedicated public transport to key destinations in the city.  Development in the Cambridge 
Southern Fringe will be within easy walking distance of Trumpington Park and Ride site, 
and The Busway.  Like Cambridge East, development in the North West of Cambridge 
will seek to achieve a modal share of no more than 40% of trips by car.  The new town of 
Northstowe will develop to an ultimate size of up to 10,000 dwellings, together with 
associated community facilities and services, and some employment provision.  The 
Busway will directly serve the new town, with a dedicated local busway through the heart 
of the new development, providing High Quality Public Transport.   

 
3.3 In the rest of the district the Council’s transport objectives and policies are set out in the 

Local Development Framework Development Control Policies DPD: 
www.scambs.gov.uk/ldf/dcpoliciesdpd.   

 
3.4 The transport issues vary across the district.  The population of the growth areas is likely 

to be younger and economically active, often with families who themselves need 
transport.  Conversely, the population of the rural areas is likely to become older and 
issues of isolation and accessibility risk becoming increasingly prevalent.  It must also be 
recognised that for some journeys and for many people in the rural area no alternative is 
possible and the car will remain indispensable.  Therefore it is important to provide 
alternatives to the car before further traffic restraint is applied.   

 

Page 21



Appendix A 

3.5 However, the Council recognises that whilst it is difficult to reduce traffic levels in the area 
because of continuing development, subject to reductions in public expenditure over 
coming years there may be scope to increase the proportion of journeys undertaken by 
more sustainable forms of transport.  The Council will seek to secure Travel Plans 
through Section 106 agreements, together with contributions towards mitigating the 
impact of the trips generated by new development through the adopted Cambridge 
Corridor Area Transport Plans and a Community Infrastructure Levy.  The existing 
Corridor Area Transport Plans have provided a useful approach to securing developer 
contributions, which complement LTP funding.  These Plans are currently being reviewed 
as part of the Cambridge Area Transport Strategy. 

 
6. PUBLIC AND COMMUNITY TRANSPORT  

 
6.1 In a rural district commercial public transport services are very often not viable without 

significant levels of subsidy and tend to provide a very limited service frequency.  
Given the current funding situation, many rural bus services may therefore be in 
jeopardy without intervention.   

 
6.2 Therefore the Council supports the creation of rural interchanges at key locations along 

the main corridors served with higher frequency bus services, which may help 
increase patronage on these services and improve their viability.  There is already 
evidence that people are cycling to bus stops, for example along the former A428.  
Provision of infrastructure such as cycle parking, a shelter, seating and real time 
information would enable people from nearby villages to walk, cycle, use community 
transport or be dropped off at a bus stop in order to interchange with a high frequency 
bus service.   

 
6.3 Community Transport was one of the Council’s objectives in 2009/10, and this led to the 

production of a Community Transport Strategy (CTS) with the aim of complementing 
conventional means of transport in order to aid independent living, increase access to 
services and reduce rural isolation, which particularly affects the elderly and young 
people.  The CTS is supported by an Evidence Base and Action Plan, which provide 
the first steps towards a more comprehensive approach to the improvement of 
transport services within South Cambridgeshire.   

 
6.4 The objectives of the CTS are to understand the level of need for community transport 

within the district; developing capacity, self-sufficiency and environmental 
sustainability of service providers to meet the need; and to enable easy access to 
community transport.  Community transport delivery must be linked to and integrated 
with public transport policy to help ‘plug the gaps’, therefore it is crucial for the 
Council to continue to work with partners in order to manage change effectively. 

 
6.5 The Council would also like to explore the provision of Demand Responsive Travel, 

whereby people can ring a central number and ask to travel the same day to their 
destination.  This would provide greater flexibility in public transport services to the 
most isolated communities to travel when they want or need to, rather than when the 
service is provided.  Experience elsewhere shows it can offer a cost effective means 
of providing a better public transport service to people in rural areas compared to 
subsidising conventional buses.  When funding can be found the Council would 
support a major expansion of Community Transport services in South 

Page 22



Appendix A 

Cambridgehsire.  In the meantime, the Council would support a pilot project to 
investigate the feasibility, potentially using Community Transport services.  Demand 
Responsive Travel may also have a role in providing access to rural interchanges 
from poorer served villages. 

 
6.6 As Community Transport is becoming increasingly important to ‘plug the gaps’ in public 

transport it is it important to the Council that every opportunity is taken to extend the 
discretionary element of the Concessionary Fares Scheme to allow Concessionary 
Bus Passes to be used on Community Transport services, particularly in those areas 
where there are no public transport alternatives.   

 
6.7 With Cambridge the focus of many trips by public transport it is important that bus journey 

times into and interchange within the city are improved, to help minimise journey 
times, and improve journey reliability and ease of access.  Congestion along the 
radial routes approaching Cambridge as well as in and around the city centre, 
including the large number of buses utilising the Drummer Street area, is currently a 
problem that is impacting on the overall quality of bus services.  The LTP Cambridge 
Area Transport Strategy will be crucial to addressing these issues. 

 
6.8 The Council supports the development of an interchange at Chesterton which will 

substantially improve accessibility for residents living to the north of the city to rail and 
bus services without the need to travel into the city centre or railway station.   

 
7. CYCLING 

 
7.1 In June 2008 South Cambridgeshire District Council became a partner in the Cycle 

Cambridge project, working with Cambridgeshire County Council and Cambridge City 
Council, utilising £3.6m of funding (match funded) to improve cycling in Cambridge 
and within a 5-6mile radius, which includes the necklace villages in South 
Cambridgeshire.   

 
7.2 Much progress has been made to date on several routes in South Cambridgeshire, and 

other infrastructure measures including the implementation of cycle parking at 
primary schools and village locations, the launch of Cycling Sorted, an online 
mapping system that will allow the public to plot onto digital maps their suggested 
locations for cycle parking and minor improvements to cycleways.  In addition, many 
soft measures have been carried out, including Bikeability training in primary schools 
and for adults, and various marketing and promotion events.  The results are already 
visible, with completed routes already well used.   

 
7.3 The route between Cottenham, Histon and Impington into Cambridge is already heavily 

used.  However, the A14 junction can be seen as a barrier to some less 
accomplished or confident cyclists.  As a result there may be a high level of latent 
demand, particularly for children accessing schools in the area.  Therefore the 
Council commissioned a study to establish what improvements to the junction are 
feasible.  Improvements to this junction, through the installation of cycle crossings on 
the slip roads, will be delivered as part of the Cycle Cambridge programme. 

 
7.4 The network of routes from South Cambs to the city is now well developed.  However, it 

is important that routes are considered in their entirety as the standard of the network 

Page 23



Appendix A 

as a whole is critical to whether people choose to cycle.  At present many cycle paths 
‘stop short’ of desired destinations, such as the city centre, with cyclists directed onto 
roads where they have to compete with vehicles, often at busy bottlenecks or 
junctions, or they face longer, circuitous routes.  The Council would like future funding 
on cycleways focussed on addressing these gaps in the network. 

 
8. ROAD & RAIL FREIGHT  

 
8.1 As outlined in paragraph 1.2, a number of strategic routes run through the district, 

resulting in considerable freight traffic on roads through the district.  The Council 
therefore supports the Felixstowe to Nuneaton (F2N) rail improvements to increase 
capacity between the east coast ports and the midlands and beyond.  Removing 
freight from the roads will help reduce congestion on strategic routes, particularly the 
A14, improve road safety and reduce CO2 emissions by around three-quarters, all to 
the benefit of local communities living in villages close to these routes.  

 
8.2 Changes in legislation and standards require HCV drivers to take regular rest breaks.  

However, there is insufficient secure serviced parking provision at present, leading to 
the use of industrial and residential areas for overnight stops.  This has caused much 
local concern from the local communities affected, for example at Histon, Impington 
and Bar Hill.  As well as undermining the amenity of the highway, lorry parking in 
residential areas also raises environmental health issues, particularly when drivers 
are taking overnight stops in areas where there are no public amenities available.   

 
8.3 The Department for Transport (DfT) Strategy for Lorry Parking in England was published 

in November 2009, outlining the Department's Strategic Objectives and Action Plan.  
As part of this work the DfT undertook a survey as part of a Lorry Parking Audit Study 
in June 2010.  Therefore slow progress is being made, however it is imperative that 
the Cambridgeshire authorities continue to press for a comprehensive national 
approach.  

 
8.4 A substantial amount of new development is planned in the district which will require the 

transportation of building materials, thus further increasing the movement of lorries 
through the district.  The Council is working with the County Council and developers 
to ensure freight traffic utilises the most appropriate routes to minimise impact on 
communities.  The Council is also seeking the inclusion of a routing strategy in the 
County Council’s Minerals and Waste Core Strategy. 

 
South Cambridgeshire District Council fully supports the Cambridgeshire Local Transport 
Plan. 
 
Cllr Nick Wright 
Planning Portfolio Holder 
South Cambridgeshire District Council 
 

Page 24



Appendix B 

PLANNING PORTFOLIO HOLDER'S MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, 8 MARCH 2011 
 

DECISIONS 
 

Set out below is a summary of the decisions taken at the Planning Portfolio Holder's Meeting 
held on Tuesday, 8 March 2011.  Decisions made by the Portfolio Holder will be subject to 
call-in.  Recommendations made to the Cabinet or to the Council are not subject to call-in.  
The wording used does not necessarily reflect the actual wording that will appear in the 
minutes. 
 
If you have any queries about any matters referred to in this decision sheet please contact 
Ian Senior. 
 

1. SERVICE PLANS 2011/12 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder noted, approved and adopted the Planning aspects of the 

Planning and New Communities Sservice Plan. 
 

 Other Options Considered: None specified 
 

 Reason For Decision: To set priorities for 2011-12  
  
2. CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder approved amendments to the Procurement Strategy to 

link to: 
(a) the Climate Change Action Plan 2010-13: 

(i) amend paragraph 4.8.6 of the Procurement Strategy (new 
wording shown in bold italics) 
“As part of the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan 2010-13 the 
Council is committed to reducing its own carbon footprint and 
procurement can play a part in achieving this aim.  The Council 
will therefore place significant weight upon seeking to ensure that 
the level of life-cycle carbon emissions associated with the 
materials, products, services and utilities that it procures are in 
line with its carbon reduction commitments.” 

(ii) amend paragraph 4.8.9 of the Procurement Strategy (new 
wording shown in bold italics)  
 “The strategy is concerned with adopting a consistent approach 
for assessing the environmental impact of procurement activity 
within all the Council’s service areas. To this end technical 
guidance, support documents and training sessions will be made 
available to staff. This includes the use of life cycle assessments, 
eco-labels (e.g. energy star) and sustainability criteria in tender 
documentation.”  

(b) the Safeguarding Children Policy 2009 and Safeguarding Vulnerable 
Adults Policy 2010: 
(i) insert a new section in the Procurement Strategy:  

10 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults 
10.1 The Council needs to safeguard the welfare of children and 

vulnerable adults. Therefore Contract Regulations will 
ensure that where procurement involves contractors 
coming into contact with children or vulnerable adults, the 
service will include criteria in the specification relating to 
the conduct of employees, health & safety, Safeguarding 

Page 25



Appendix B 

Children and Vulnerable Adult terms and put suitable 
reporting processes in place to mirror the Council’s internal 
procedures. 

 
 Other Options Considered: The options are:  

(c) To accept the recommended changes to the Procurement Strategy, 
allowing these changes to be made.  

(d) To suggest amendments or additions to the Procurement Strategy. 
 

 Reason For Decision: Amending the Procurement Strategy will ensure that it is aligned 
with the Climate Change Action Plan 2010-13, the Safeguarding Children Policy 2009 
and the Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults Policy 2010 and that these are taken into 
account in relevant procurement exercises. 

  
3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY FOR SOUTH CAMBRIDGESHIRE 2010-15 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder:  

(e) Noted the content of this report 
(f) Adopted the Economic Development Strategy, attached in Appendix 1.  

 
 Other Options Considered: None specified 

 
 Reason For Decision:  It will raise the profile of economic development in South 

Cambridgeshire, attract business, funding, investment, infrastructure and research, 
provide a focus for partnership working including with the Local Enterprise Partnership, 
and integrate economic development with other Council activities 

  
4. CAMBRIDGESHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 3 
 The Portfolio Holder: 

 
(g) supported the emerging Local Transport Plan 3. 
(h) endorsed the District Statement for inclusion within LTP3 (attached at 

Appendix 3). 
 

 Other Options Considered: None specified 
 

 Reason For Decision: Consultation 
  
5. CARRY FORWARD OF UNCOMMITTED GRANT BALANCES TO 2011-12 
 The Planning Portfolio Holder resolved that the following uncommitted grant balances 

be carried forward into the 2011/12 financial year: 
• Heritage Initiatives Grants    £29,061  
• Historic Buildings Preservation Fund         £54,622 
 

 Other Options Considered:  The decision is simply whether or not to carry forward the 
balance in each case. The current Medium Term Financial Plan assumes that all 
uncommitted balances are carried forward until used for grant expenditure. The 
recommendation is to carry forward the balances. The recommendation follows the 
wishes of the Conservation and Design Manager, whose plans would be compromised 
by the loss of funds needed for future grants or possible action to protect key listed 
buildings at risk. The outstanding balances brought forward could then be reviewed 
again at any stage in the future. 
 

 Reason For Decision: None specified 
  

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 Call in: Cambridgeshire Local Transport Plan 3
	Covering Report for Call-in Appendix A
	Decisions , 08/03/2011 Planning Portfolio Holder's Meeting


